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2024
40,932,430 95.6
1,876,970 4.4
42,809,400
( 6,710 ) 1000
2024
( ) ( )
)

291,417 121.80| 35,493,251 140.46| 40,932,430| 95.6

2024 10
42 10

1 US ULTRA BOND CBT Sep24 (CBT) 17.22
2 S&P500 EMINI FUT Jun24 (CME) 10.12
3 US LONG BOND(CBT) Sep24 (CBT) 9.44
4 | JPN 10Y BOND(OSE) Jun24 (OSE) 7.62
5 FTSE 100 IDX FUT Jun24 (ICF) 7.22
6 Euro-BTP Future Jun24 (EUX) 6.95
7 TOPIX INDX FUTR Jun24 (OSE) 6.58
8 LONG GILT FUTURE Sep24 (ICF) 6.50
9 EURO-BUND FUTURE Jun24 (EUX) 6.48
10 US 10YR NOTE (CBT)Sep24 (CBT) 6.46

2024
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2024
2023 2024

2021 31 60,869,252.54 9,540,647 108.04 16,934
2022 31 38,029,521.69 5,960,747 108.55 17,014
2023 31 47,523,171.39 7,448,782 93.82 14,705
2024 31 42,721,621.31 6,696,187 101.43 15,898
2023 44,269,679.88 6,938,830 96.17 15,074
43,652,752.48 6,842,132 97.65 15,306
42,160,908.88 6,608,301 94.88 14,871
40,831,799.68 6,399,976 92.57 14,509
10 39,575,870.06 6,203,122 91.34 14,317
11 40,701,226.90 6,379,510 95.86 15,025
12 43,120,350.03 6,758,684 102.00 15,987
2024 42,721,621.31 6,696,187 101.43 15,898
43,172,422.91 6,766,846 103.21 16,177
44,996,977.50 7,052,826 108.10 16,944
42,923,607.79 6,727,846 103.90 16,285
42,809,399.50 6,709,945 104.98 16,455
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717,154 153,781 563,373
2020 23
(717,154) (153,781) (563,373)
2021
96,493 309,527 350,339
2021
96,493 309,527 350,339
2022
329,475 173,273 506,541
2022
329,475 173,273 506,541
2023
0 85,347 421,194
2023 ) (85,347) (421,194)
2024 ’ ’
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AHL

2024 1 31
2024 1 31 2023 1 31
2,9 1,776,261 278,411 2,070,563 324,540
2,3,9 41,222,850 6,461,270 45,616,199 7,149,883
9 10,243 1,605 51,024 7,998

43,009,354 6,741,286 47,737,786 7,482,421

59 8,137 1,275 30,329 4,754
5,9 22,391 3,510 - -
8,9 28,687 4,496 25,505 3,998
8,9 4,592 720 4,924 772
8,9 383 60 410 64
8,9 7,653 1,200 5,953 933
9 - - 14,159 2,219
8,9 5,734 899 6,149 964
8,9 15,000 2,351 5,000 784
9 79,310 12,431 77,688 12,177
171,887 26,942 170,117 26,664

42,837,467 6,714,345 47,567,669 7,455,756

4 421,194 506,541

1 101.70 16 93.91 15
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AHL

2024 1 31

2024 1 31 2023 1 31

216,330 33,908 (401,337) (62,906)

3,830,320 600,364 (2,444,006) (383,074)
(88) (14) - -
4,046,562 634,258 (2,845,343) (445,979)

8 241,643 37,875 151,165 23,694
8 50,733 7,952 21,659 3,395
8 65,259 10,229 53,273 8,350
5 90,001 14,107 90,001 14,107
5 96,703 15,157 73,289 11,487
62,828 9,848 77,333 12,121

8 52,207 8,183 42,619 6,680
8 4,350 682 3,551 557
8 10,000 1,567 10,000 1,567
673,724 105,599 522,890 81,958

3,372,838 528,659 (3,368,233) (527,937)
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2024 1 31

2023 1 31

47,567,669 7,455,756

(8,103,040)  (1,270,070)

3,372,838 528,659

38,138,412 5,977,815

29,451,101 4,616,166
(16,653,611)  (2,610,287)

(3,368,233)  (527,937)

42,837,467 6,714,345

47,567,669 7,455,756
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AHL

2024 1 31
2024 1 31 2023 1 31
3,372,838 528,659  (3,368,233)  (527,937)
(10,000) (1,567) (25,700,000)  (4,028,218)
8,450,000 1,324,453 14,720,000 2,307,213
(216,330) (33,908) 400,974 62,849
(3,830,320)  (600,364) 2,444,006 383,074
- - 300,000 47,022
40,781 6,392 28,191 4,419
(22,192) (3,478) 22,439 3,517
22,391 3,510 (18,606) (2,916)
3,182 499 11,626 1,822
(332) (52) 757 119
27) 4) 63 10
1,700 266 4,217 661
(415) (65) 946 148
10,000 1,567 2,500 392
1,621 254 25,088 3,932
7,822,897 1,226,161  (11,126,032)  (1,743,894)
- - 29,451,101 4,616,166
(8,103,040)  (1,270,070)  (16,653,611)  (2,610,287)
(14,159) (2,219) (121,903) (19,107)
(8,117,199)  (1,272,290) 12,675,587 1,986,772
(294,302) (46,129) 1,549,555 242,877
2,070,563 324,540 521,008 81,663
1,776,261 278,411 2,070,563 324,540
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AHL

2024 1 31

AHL
2013 12 2 UBS
" i

UBS
2020 2 24
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
AHL
I
MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd
2021 12 CsC
CsC 2022 11
2025 1 31
() 1,000,000
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AHL
2024 1 31
1.
1
1 34
1
/
1
1

UBS AG UBS

FINMA 2023 3 19 AG

2023 6 12 UBS AG AG

2024 5 29

2.

a
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Financial Position

As at January 31, 2024
{Stared in United States dallars)

Note January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023
USIy UsSD
Assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 19 1,776,261 2,070,563
Investments in Selected Fund 2.3.9 41,222 850 45,616,199
Prepayments and other assets 9 10,243 51024
Total assets 43,009,354 47,737,786
Liahilities
Administration fees pavable 59 #.137 30,329
Professional fees payable 59 22.39] -
Distributor fees payvable 89 2R.GET 25,505
Fee Agent fees payable 59 4,592 4,924
Agent Member Company fees payable 59 383 410
Manager Support Service Provider fees payable £9 7.653 5,953
Redemption pavable 9 - 14,159
Investment Manager fees payvable 8.9 5.734 f,149
Trustee fees payable £.9 15,000 5,000
Other pavables 9 79310 77,6088
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
the holder of redeemable units) 171 887 170,117
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
units 42.837.467 47,567,669
MNumber of units outstanding 4 421,194 516,541
Met asset value per unit 101,70 93.91

See aocompanying motes o the financial statements,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
{Stared in United Stares dollgrs)

For the vear ended  For the yvear ended
Mote January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023
Usn UsD
MNet income/(loss) from financial instruments at
FVTPL:
Met realized gain{loss) on financial assets and
liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss 216,330 (401,337
MNet change in unrealized
appreciation{depreciation) on financial assets
and liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss 3H30.320 (2,494,004}
Met foreign currency loss on cash and cash
equivalents (28} -
Total net gains/(losses) on investments 4,046,562 (2845 343)
Operating expenses
Dhstributor Fees 5 241,643 151,165
Manager Support Service Provider Fees b 50,733 21,659
Investment Manager Fees B 65,259 53,273
Administration foes 5 S0.001 90,001
Professional fecs 5 G, T3 713,289
her fees 62,828 77,333
Fee Agent Fees 8 52,207 42,619
Agent Member Company Fees b 4350 1551
Trustee fees B 10,000 10,000
Total operating expenses 673.724 522890
Increase/{decrease) in net assets atiributable to the
holder of redeemahle units from operations 3372838 (3,368.233)

See accompentying rotes fo the francial staiements.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Changes in Net Asscts Attributable to the Holder of Redeemable Units

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
{Stared in United Stares dollars)

For the vear ended  For the yvear ended
January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023

Usn UsD
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemahble
units at the beginning of the year 47,567 6609 3R, 138412
Issue of redeemable uniis - 29,451,101
Repurchase of redecmable units {5, 103,040) (166536110
Increase/(decrease) in net asscts attnibutable to the
holder of redeemable units from operations 3,372,838 (3.368,233)
MNet assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
units at the end of the vear 42 837 467 47,567,609

See acoompanyving motex fo the fimancial statements,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
iStated in United States dollars)

For the vear ended  For the vear ended
January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023
UsD UsD
Cash NMows Mrom operating activities
Increase/{decrease) in net assets attributable tw the
holder of redeemable units from operations 3372838 (3,368,233}
Adjustments to reconcile increasef{decrease) in net
assets attrnibutable wo the holder of unis from
operations to cash provided by{used in)
operating activitics:
Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund (10,0007 (25, 700,000)
Procecds from disposition of investment in the
Selected Fund 450,000 14,720,000
Net realized (gainhloss on financial assets and
liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss (216,330) 400,974
Met change in unrcalized
{appreciation)/depreciation on financial assets
and liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss (3.530,320) 2444006
Drecrease indue from broker - 300,000
Decrease in prepayments and other asscts 40,781 28,191
( Decrease)increase in Administration fees payable (22,192) 22,439
Increase/(decrease) in Professional foes payable 22,391 (18.606)
Increase/(decrease) in Distributor fees payable 3082 11,626
(Decrease ) increase in Fee Agent fees pavable (332) 757
i Decrease)increase in Agent Member Company
fees payable (27 63
Ingcrease in Manager Support Service Provider fees
payable 1,700 4217
(Decrease ) increase in Investment Manager fiees
payable (415) B4
Increase in Trustee fees payable 101,000 2.500
Increase in other payables 1,621 25,088
MNet cash provided by/{used in) operating
activities 7.822.897 (11.126,032)
Cash Nows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable units - 29.451,101
Fayment on repurchase of redeemable units (5,103,040) (la053611)
Diecrease in redemption payvable (14,159) (121,903}
Met cash (used in)provided by financing
activities (5,117,199 12,675,587
Met (decreaseinerease in cash and cash cquivalents (294,302) 1,549,555
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,070,563 521,008
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear 1,776,261 2070,563

See gocompanying motes o the financial starements,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
iStated in United States dollars)

1. Incorporation and hackground information

Forgign Currency Denominated Man AHL Sman Leverage Strategy Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series
trust of UBS Universal Trust {Cayman) [ (formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1) {the
“Trust™), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a master trust deed dated December 2, 2013,
under Cayman Islands law, The Series Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated
February 24, 2020 and made between Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the *Trustee™), a trust company
ingorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands, and the UBS Management (Cayman) Limited { formerly
Credit Swisse Management (Cayman) Limited) (the “Manager™). The prnncipal office of the Trestee and
therefore the Series Trust 15 One Mexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY 1-2005, Cayman [slands.
All Unitholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and are deemed to have notice of, the provisions
of the Master Trust Deed and any trust deed supplemental thereto.

The Man AHL Active Balanced (the “Selected Fund™) aims to generate capital growth over the medium to
long term by providing dynamic exposure toa range of assets and to provide an excess returm stream with a
stable level of volatility regardiess of market conditions. Such execess return stream refers to a return in
exeess of that which would be provided by investment in high-guality, short-dated government hills,

The investment objective of the Serics Trust is to gencrate capital growth by investing substantially all of
the assets of the Series Trust into the | Class Shares of the Selected Fund, which invests in (among other
things) global equity indices futures and bond futures using a proprictary quantitative model.

The Administrator of the Series Trust is MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) Limited (the “Administrator™),

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Daiwa Asset Management {Evrope) Lid (the “Tnvestment
Manager”).

The Manager has authorised Daiwa Securities Co. Lid. to act as a distributor of the units in Japan, The
Manager may appoint further distributors of the units in futre (each a “Distributor™ and collectively the
“Distributors™),

The Fee Agent of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Imernational (the “Fee Agent™)

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member
Company™).

Daiwa Asset Management (Japan) Co, Ltd., acts as the Manager Suppont Service Provider (the “Manager
Support Service Provider™).

On December 2021, Corporation Service Company (“CSC™) announced that a conditional agreement had
been reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Intertrust
Group of which the Trustee is wholly owned subsidiary.

In November 2022, CSC ¢losed on its acquisition of Imertrust Group.
Final Repurchaye Day
The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of January 31, 2025 and the earliest practicable repurchase

day following the occumrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the “Final Repurchase Day™), unless
termnated earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Supplemental Trust Deed.

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first to oceur of any of the following:
(ip the Net Asset Value on any valuation day is USDS 1,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or
thereafter the Manager determines that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased by giving

notice to all unithalders; or

(i) the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased, (cach a
“Compulsory Repurchase Event™).
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
iStated in United States dollars)

1. Incorporation and hackground information {continued)

Upon the oceurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit 15 repurchased on the Final Repurchase
Day at the final repurchase price per unil. The final repurchase price per unit is caleulated by the
Administrator in its sole diseretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 34 as
the Met Asset Value per unit on the Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day). Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no
Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time o time
determine in respect of the Series Trust, Umitholder s able to neceive an amount in respect of cach unit
repurchased on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal to the Net Asset Value per
unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day) (the “Repurchase Price”). There is no repurchase fee applied to the
Repurchase Price in respeet of each unit being repurchased.

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG ("UBS™ agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG ("Credit Suisse™)
following intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss National Bank and the Swiss
Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA),

On June 12, 2023, UBS Group AG completed the take over of Credit Suisse Group AG.
The Series Trust has no exposure related to investments in financial assets with Credit Suisse International,
The financial statements were authonzed for issue by the Trustee on May 29, 2024,
1.  Material accounting policies
fal} Statement of complianee

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards (“IFRS™)
and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (“1ASB™).

iy Basis of meastrenicns

The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements is the United States dollar and not
the local currency of the Cayvman Islands, reflecting the fact that the units of the Series Trust are issued
and repurchased in United States dolfars.

The financial statements are prepared on a fair value basis for financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), including investments in Selected Fund, Other financial assets and
liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilitics are stated at amortised cost or historical cost,

fe) Use of estimates and fudgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management 1o make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and cxpenses. Actual results may differ from these
CElimates.

Estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applving
accounting policies that have the moest significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are described in Note 9.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND

Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
{Stated in United States dollars)

z

Material accounting policies (continued)
fil} Foreign currency franslation

Transactions in forcign currencies are translated to United States dollars a1 the foreign cummency
exchange rale ruling at the date of the ransaction. Monctary assets and labilitics denominated in
foreign currencies are tramslated to United States dollars at the foreign curreney-closing exchange rate at
the reporting dates. MNon-monetary assets and liahilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined,

Foreign currency exchange differences ansing on translation and realised gains and losses on disposals
of seitlements of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

fed Accounting policy and disclosires

(1) Sundards, amendments and imterpretations that is effective for the financial year beginning
Febroary 1, 2023,

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
herein. These policics have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise
stated. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Inernational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial statements in aceordance with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager to
exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust's accounting policies,

(11} Changes in material accounting policies

The Series Trust adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS | and IFRS
Practice Statement 2) from February 1, 2023, Although the amendments did not result in any
changes to the accounting policics themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information
disclosed in the Nnancial statements,

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘'material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies.
The amendments also provide gpuidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of
accounting  policies, assisting entities to  provide useful, entitv-specific accounting  policy
information that users need to understand other information in the financial statements,

(i) MNew standards, amendments and interpretations effective after February 1, 2023 and have not been
carly adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and inferpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after February 1, 2023, and have not been early adopted in preparing these

financial statements. MNone of these are expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements of the Series Trust,

{1 Fimancial instromernts
{il  Recopnition and initial measurement

The Series Trust imitially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on the trade
date, which is the date at which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the imstrument, Other financial assets and financial liabilivies are recognised on the date on which
they are originated.

A financial asset or financial liability 15 measured initially at fair value plos, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable vo its acquisition or issue.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
iStated in United States dollars)

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
() Fimancial instraements feontinued)

fif)  Classification and subseguent measirement

Clazsification of financial assetls

On imitial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

s atas held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets o callect contractual cash
Mows, and

& its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and intercst,

All other financial assets of the Senies Trust are measured at FVTPL.
The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models.

#  Held-to-colleet business model: this includes cash, subseriptions recervable and prepayments
and other assets. These financial assets are held to colleet contractual cash flow.

# Other business model: this includes investments in Selected Fund. These fimancial assets are
managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking
place or based on the net asset value per unit obtained from their respective administrator,
which management deems to approximate fair value.

Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 1o their imitial recogmition unless the Series Trust
were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected

financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting year following the
change in the business model,

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilitics are classificd as measured at amortised cost or FYTPL.

A financial liability is classified as ot FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss,

Oither financial labilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss,
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: This includes investment manager fees pavable,
administration fees pavable, professional fees pavable, distributor fees pavable, fees agent fees
payable, agent member company fees payable, manager support service provider fecs payable, duc
to broker and other payables,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended Janoary 31, 2024
iStated in United States dollars)

2.  Material accounting policies (continued)
() Fimancial instraements feontinued)
firid  Feair value measivement principles

‘Fair Walue® is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access at that date. The fair
value of a liability reflects its non-performance nisk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in
an active market for that instrument, A market is regarded as “active” if transactions for the asset
or liahility take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active market at a close price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, the Serics Trust uses valuation technigques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable imputs, The
chosen valuation technigue incorporates all of the factors that market participants would rake into
FCoount in pricing a transaction.

Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-
returm factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Series Trust calibrates valuation techniques
and tests them for validity using prices from observable current market transactions in the same
instrument or based on other available observable market data,

Fuair value fievare Sy

IFRS 13 establishes a fair value hicrarchy that prioritises the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fur value, The hierarchy gives the highest prionty to unadjusted guoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilitics (Level | measurements) and the lowest priority to
measurements involving significant unobservable inputs {Level 3 measurements). The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy are as follows;

¢ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
Tiabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date,

¢ Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thar are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

#  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or lability (lowest among hierarchy).

The level in fair value hicrarchy within a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in ifs entirety,

fivl  Amortised cost measurement

The *amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial hability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minws the principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any differcnce
between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for fnancial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowanee.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended Janoary 31, 2024
iStated in United States dollars)

2.  Material accounting policies (continued)
() Fimancial instraements feontinued)
vl fenpairment

The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial assets measured a1 amortised
cost on 12-month or lifetime basis,

Impairment on cash, subscriptions receivable and prepayments and other assets has been measured
on o | 2-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series
Trust considers the credit risk is low or not material as a whole based on the external eredit ratings
of the counterpartics, On this hasis, there was no impairment recorded by the Series Trust for the
viear ended January 31, 2024,

{vi}  Chfsetting

Financial assets and financial habilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of
Financial Position when, and only when, the Series Trust has a legally enforceable right 1o offset
the amounts and intends cither to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

As at January 31, 2024 and, all finaneial asseis and liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as
none met the eriteria for financial instrument offsetting, and therefore have not been offset in the
Statement of Financial Position,

Income and expenses are presented on @ net basis for net change in unrealized and realized gains
on investments in Selected Fund,

{vit) Derecogmition

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as
a separate asset or liability i the Statement of Financial Position.

O derccognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (and
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised), and the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less anv new liability assumed) is recogniscd in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income,

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Om derecognition of a financial lRability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recogmised 1n profit or loss,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
{Stated in United States dollars)

2.  Material accounting policies (continued)

() Fimancial fnstruments {comtinned)
{vifi) Specific instruments
-ash equivalents

This includes cash and forergn cash deposited with banks, which 15 subject to an msignificant risk
of changes in value and are held for meeting short-tenn cash commitments rather than for
invesiment or other purposes.

Investments in Selected Fund

Investments in Selected Fund are classified into the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss category and are carried at their net asset value as reported by the Selected Fund's
administrators,

Where definitive values are not available, estimated values of the Series Trust’s investments in
Selected Funds may be used. For the purposes of subscriptions and repurchases, no adjustments

arc made to such values, notwithstanding any subsequent adjustment to the estimated valuation
provided in respeet of the relevant invested fund,

As a result of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the estimated carrying values for the
aforementioned securities may differ from the valuwes that would have been used had a ready
market for the investments existed, and the differences could be material.

(&) Interest income

Interest income and expense are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as it accrues,
using the orginal effective intercst rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or ongination

date,
T Net imcome/(Toss) fren financial insterments af FVTPL

Met income/{loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL are comprised of gains/{losses) arising from
disposals and changes in the fair value of investmems.

{il Fees and other expenses

Fees and other expenses are recognised in profitor loss on an aceried basis,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended Janoary 31, 2024
{Stared in United States dallars)

2.  Material accounting policies (continued)
{1 Redeemable units

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased ot the holder option. The Series Trust classifies s
puttable instruments as liabilitics in accordance with 1AS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments:
Presentation,

The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to
b classified as equity where certain strict criteria are met. Those critenia nclude;

¢ The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assels;
e The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be identical;

¢ There must be no contracteal obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the
obligation on the issuer to repurchase; and

s The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially
an the profit or loss of the issuer,

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust’s units have been classified as equity at January 31,
2024,

Units can be put back to the Serics Trust at any time for cash cqual 10 a proportionate share of the
Series Trust’s total equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payahle at the Statement of Financial Position date if
the holder exercises the right to put the wnits back into the Series Trust,

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust’s wotal equity per unit at the time of
issue or repurchase. The Senes Trust’s equity per unit 15 caleulated by dividing the 1otal equity by the
total number of outstanding units.

3. lovestments in Selected Fund

The Series Trust has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment funds in which it invests, but that it
daes not consalidate, meet the definition of structured entities because:

- the voting rights in these funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them because the rights
relate to administrative tasks only;

- each fund"s activities are restricted by its prospectus; and
= the funds have narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to investors,

The table which shows the types of structured entitics that the Series Trust does not consolidate but in
which it holds interest.

Interest held by the Series
Type of structured entity  Nature and purpose Trust

To manage assets on behalf of third party

mvestors and generate fees for the investment

manager. These vehicles are financed through %0 of interest inthe investee
Investment funds the i1zsues of units to investors funds
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
{Stated in United States dollars)

3. Investments in Selected Fund {continued)

As of January 31, 2024 and 2023, the Selected Fund was denominated in United States dollars, Summarnised
information reflecting the Series Trust's investments in Selected Fund as of January 31, 2024 and 2023 is
detailed below,

24
%0 of
%% of interesi
interest in the % of
in the Investes Series
Fair invesioe funds Trust's Redemption  Lock
Strateoy/Underdving Fund Cost Value fumds  USD Class et assels permiticd -Up Level
Multi-strategy:
MAN AHL ACTIVE
BALANCED 1 USD ITA30260 40222850 11.00% 0% 96.23% Draally n'a Level 2
023
% of
Yeof intenest
nferest in the % of
in the investee Serics
Fair invesiee funds Trust's  Redempiion  Lock
StrategryLnderdving Fund Cost Value funds  USD Class net assets  permnitted -up Level
Multi-strategy:
MAN AHL ACTIVE
BALANCED 1 USD 45353930 4561619  RE0% 100.00% 95.590% Daly nn Level 2

4.  Share capital

USD Class redeemable units were initially offered to investors during the initial offer period at the issue
price and will be 1ssued on the mitial closing day, subject to the mimimum issue size.

From and including the initial closing day, redeemable umits of each class of redeemable units wall be
available for subseription by investors at a price equal to the Net Asset Value per unit of the applicable
class of redeemable units on cach dealing day, subject to the minimum subscription. The Net Asset Value
per unit for cach class of redeemable units are caleulated as at the relevant dealing day (or if that dealing
day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). The minimum subscription
amount is | unit and thereafter subscriptions mayv be made in 1 unit increments, The aggregate subscription
amounts are rounded down to the nearest whole unit, There are no subscription fee pavable.

Lnder the terms of the Trust deed, unitholders are the only persons recognised by the Trustee as having any
right, title or interest in or to Redeemable units registered in their name and the Trustee will only recognise
such unitholders as absolute owner of the Redeemahble units and will not be bound by any notice to the
contrary, The Trustee 15 not bound 1o take notice of or to see 1o the exceution of any trust or, save as
provided under the Trust deed or save as by some court of competent jurisdiction orders, to recognise any
trust or equity or other interest affecting the title to any redeemable units.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
iStated in United States dollars)

4.  Share capital (continued)

The issue and fully paid capital comprises:

2024 2023
USD Class Units
Number of units
Units at beginnang of the yvear 506,541 350,339
Units subscribed . 329475
Units redeemed (85.347) (173,273)
Uriits at end of the vear 421,194 506,541

Investors may subscribe for redeemable units of a class of redeemable units during the mitial offer period
by sending a completed subseniption agreement to the Administrator so as to be received by the
Administrator by no later than 7.00 p.m. {Tokyo time) on the last day of the initial offer period or by such
other times and/or days as the Manager may in its sole discretion determine,

Redeemable umits are 1ssued on the imtial closing day or the relevant dealing day, as applicable,

Applicants for redeemable units should note that none of the Troswee, the Administrator, the Investment
Manager nor any of their duly authorised agents or delegates will accept responsibility for any loss caused
as a resull of the illegibility or non-receipt of any application sent by electromie mail or other electronic
means a5 agreed in advance with the Administrator or for any loss caused in respect of any action taken as a
consequence of instructions believed in good faith to be signed by properly authorised persons

The Investment Manager reserves the right to decline any application to subscribe for redeemable units in
whole or in part in its absolute discretion and redecmable units which have been issued on 2 dealing day but
for which a properly completed application and payment, as described above, is not imely received may be
compulsorily repurchased for nil consideration.

The Trustee or its delegates reserve the right to request such information as is necessary to verify the
identity of an applicant (or trmansforee) of redeemable units, the idemtity  of their  bencficial
owners'controllers (where applicable) and the source of payment of subscription monies. Where the
circumstances permit, the Trustee or its delegates may be satisfied that full due diligence may not be
required where an exemption applics under the Anti-Money Laundening Regulations (2020 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, as amended and revised from time to time or any other applicable law. However, detaled
verification information may be required prior to the payment of any proceeds from or any transfer of an
interest in redecmable units,

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on cach repurchase day in respect of
redecmable units of a class of redecmable units for which subseription proceeds have been received by the
Administrator. In order to make a repurchase request, a unitholder must submit a completed repurchase
notice in the form or other electronic means as agreed in advance with the Administrator specifyving the
number of redeemable units 1o be repurchased so as to be received by the Administrator by no later than
7.00 pum. (Tokyo time) on the repurchase notice day immediately preceding the relevant repurchase day, or
by such other time andfor days as the Investment Manager may, in its sole discretion, determine (the
“Repurchase Notice Deadline”™).

The repurchase price per redeemable units of a class of redeemable units are ealeulated as the Net Asset
WValue per redeemable unit of such class of redeemable units as at the relevant repurchase day (or if that
repurchase day is not also a valuation day then on the immediately preceding valuation day) (the
“Repurchase Price™).

Mo conversion of redeemable units is permitted in respect of the Series Trust,
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended Janoary 31, 2024
iStated in United States dollars)

5. Fees and expenses
Admirisiretor Fege

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.08% on the first USD 250,000,000 of the net assets, 0.07%
on the next USD 250,000,000 of the net assets and 0.06% on the net assets over USD 500,000,000, subject
to a monthly minimum fec of USD 7,000, The fees camed by the Administrator during the yvear ended
January 31, 2024 and 2023, and owtstanding fees payvable to the Administrator as of January 31, 2024 and
2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively,

FProfessional Feex

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the vear ended January 31, 2024 and
2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of January 31, 2024 and 2023, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

f.  Operating expenses

The Series Trust s responsible for all other normal operating expenscs including awdit and legal fecs and
ather charges ineluding the expenses of acquiring and disposing of investments. These expenses are accrued
throughout the year for which the Senes Trust receives the related benefit and are recorded as general
administrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

7. Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all local
income, profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063, Mo such taxes are levied in the Cayman
[slands at the present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countrics on investment income and
capital gains. Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Mo withholding tax expense was paid or payable during the vear ended January 31,
2024 and 2023,

The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman 1slands.
Many of these forcign countrics have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to
non-residents including the Selected Fund, These capital gains taxes are required 1o be determined on a self-
assessment basis and. therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund's broker on a
‘withholding® basis,

In accordance with [AS 12 - Income Taxes, the Series Trust 15 required to recognize a tax liability when it
is probable that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability w be assessed on the Series Trust's
capital gains sowrced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authoritics have full
knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The tax Lability 1s then measured at the anmount expected to
be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way
enacted tax law is applied o offshore investment Series Trusts, This creates uncerainty about whether or
not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
liabilitics management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which
could mfluence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant ax
authorities,

As at January 31, 2024 and 2023, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability
to record for any unrecognized tax benefit in the accompanying financial statements, While this represents
the Manager's best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes
on capital gains camed by the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior waming, possibly on a
retrospective basis, and could result in 2 loss to the Senes Trust.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENMOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
i Stated in United States dollars)

% Helated party transactions

Parties are considered to be related i one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee
Agent, Manager, Investment Manager, Distributor, Manager Support Service Provider, and Agent Member
Company are all related parties to the Series Trust, All fees are paid from the assets of the Series Trust by
the administrator unless otherwise noted,

Trusree Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receve a fixed annual fee of USD 10,000 per annum pavable annually. The
Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed for all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the
performance of its duties. The fees eamed by the Trustee during the year ended January 31, 2024 and 2023,
and outstanding fees pavable to the Trustee as of January 31, 2024 and 2023, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Tvestment Manager Fee

The Investment Manager 15 entitled to receive a fieg of 0.15% per annum of the Met Asset Value acerued on
and caleulated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The fees earned by the Investment
Manager during the vear ended January 31, 2024 and 2023, and omstanding fees pavahble to the Investment
Manager as of January 31, 2024 and 2023, have been disclosed i the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent is entitled to receive a fee of 0.12% per annum of the Net Asset Value (the “Operational
Costs Fees™) accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. The
Operational Costs Fees are pavable by the Administrator on hehalf of the Trustee. The fees camed by the
Fee Agent during the vear ended January 31, 2024 and 2023, and owtstanding fees pavable to Fee Agent as
of January 31, 2024 and 2023, have been disclosed in the Satement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

For the aveidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the Investment Manager
fees, audit fees, formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees, custody fees, any broker fees
relating to security transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and
eapenses, annual fees pavable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencics,
any msurance costs, any costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 34 and other similar
affering documents and the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such
documents and any taxcs relating to the purchase or disposal of sccurities, legal or compensation costs,
licensing, tax reporting, anti-money laundering compliance and monitoring, expenses related 1o the
termination or the liguidation of the Series Trust and any other extraordinary costs and expenses that would
not usually occur,

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is
liable for any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall
be retained by the Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust,
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%  Helated party transactions (continued)
Manager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of USD 5,000 per annum payable monthly in arrears.
The Fee Agent is responsible for paving the Manager Fees. For the avoidance of doubt, the Manager may
decide in its sole diseretion to reduce or waive the payment of the Manager fees, The fees camed by the
Manager during the year ended Januwary 31, 2024 and 2023, and owstanding fees pavable to the Manager as
of January 31, 2024 and 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

Agent Member Company

The Agent Member Company will be entitled to reccive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value,
accrued on and calculated as at cach Valuation Day and payable quarterly inar rears, The fees camed by the
Agent Member Company during the vear ended January 31, 2024 and 2023, and outstanding fees pavable to
the Agent Member Company as of January 31, 2024 and 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

Manager Support Service Provider

The Manager Support Service Provider will be entitled to receive, acerued on and caleulated as at cach
Valuation Day:

(i} if the MNet Asset Value per Unit attributable to such class of units over the Caleulation Period has
increased by less than 2% (using the MNet Asset Value per Unit after the reinvestment of gross
distributions), in respect of each Caleulation Valuation Day, a fee of 0L05% per annum of the Net Asset
Value attributable to such class of units; or

(i) imall other cases, a fee of 0.20% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such class of units, in
both cases accrued on an actual / 365 day count fraction and payable monthly in arrears, The Fee shall
be paid within a reasonable period from the end of the month for which payment is due. For the
avoidance of doubt, on each Valuation Day prior to the first Calculation Valuation Day, the Fee will be
caleulated in accordance with limb (51} above,

The fees eamed by the Manager Support Service Provider during the year ended January 31, 2024 and
2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Manager Support Service Provider as of January 31, 2024 and
2023, have been disclosed m the Statement of Comprechensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively.

Distribution Fees
The Distributor 15 entitled to receive acerued on and caleulated as at cach valuation day:
(ip if the MNet Asset Value per unit attributable to such class of units over the calculation period has

increased by less than 2% in respect of each calculation valuation day, a fee of 0.40% per annum of the
Met Asset Value attributable to such class of units; or

(i) in all other cases, a fee of 0.75% per annum of the Net Asset Value atributable to such class of units,
The fees earned by the Distributor during the vear ended January 31, 2024 and 2023, and outstanding fees

pavable to the Distributor as of Janpary 31, 2024 and 2023, have been disclosed in the Statemem of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's investments portfolio comprises solely of the Selected Fund. The Scries Trust's activities
gxpose it to a vancty of financial risks: market risk (incleding currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, The management of these risks is camied out by the Manager under
policies approved by the Trusiee.

The Series Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund.
For example, if another unitholder of the Sclected Fund repurchases some or all of s mterests in the
Selected Fund, the Selected Fund and, in tum, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating
expenses, thereby producing lower returns. Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to
repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting in increased portfolio nsk, The Selected Fund may restnet
it investment activities or be precluded from investing in certain imstruments due to regulatory restrictions
on certain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an adverse effect on the
performance of the Selected Fund, and, in turn, the Scries Trust,

{A) Market Risk

-

(i) Crrency Risk

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and other assets and liabilities held by the Series
Trust are denominated in U.S. Dollars, thus the Manager believes that the Series Trust has linle currency
risk exposure, and is not subject to risk due 1o direct fluctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign currency
rates,

Investment in the Selected Fund in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in
currencies other than the functional curremcy of the Series Trust, For this reason, changes in forgign
curreney ¢cxchange rates can affect the value of the Scries Trust's portfolio,

(i} frrtevest Rare Risk

[nterest rate risk is the nsk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when interest rates
decline and decrease when interest rates increase, Prices of longer-term securities gencrally change more in
response W interest rate changes than prices of shorter-term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if
short-term or long-term interest rates nse sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Seres
Trust management. When interest rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication
of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt security. The bigger the security s duration value, the
larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given movement in interest rates may be. Therefore,
the Net Asset Value may fluctuate,

The Series Trust does not have direct exposure to interest rate risk, however has indirect exposure 1o
interest rate through its investment in the Selected Fund.

The yield on the Sclected Fund’s (and indircetly, the Series Trust’s) investments may be sensitive 1o
changes in prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch berween the Selected Fund s asset vield
and borrowing rates and consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its investments.

I interest rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally decline, reducing the value of the
Selected Fund's (and indirectly, the Series Trust’s) imvestments. A major change in interest rates or a
significant decline in the market value of the Selected Fund’s (and indirectly, the Trust"s) invesiments, or
ather market event, could cause the value of the investments of the Master Fund's investors {and indireetly
the unitholders” investments in the Series Trust), or its vield, w decline.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continuwed)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
{A) Market Risk (continued)

i} Imtevess Rare Risk feontinued)

[f interest rates change, the values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change
than the values of shorter-duration debi securities.

The Series Trust may invest in fixed mcome securitics through its indireet exposure to the investments of
the Selected Fund, Any changes to prevanling mterest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may
result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities held.

The majority of the Series Trust's financial assets are non-interest bearing and. as a result, the Series Trust
is not subject 1o significant amounts of sk due W fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates. The interest bearing financial instruments are represented mainly by cash amounting to
UsSD 1,776,261 (2023: USD 2.070,563).

At January 31, 2024 and 2023, if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower with all other
variables held constant, the net assets would have been approximately USD 888 {2023: USD 1.035) higher
or lower, 85 a result of higher or lower interest income on deposits with the Fund *s Prime Brokers.

(ifi) Market Price Risk

The market price of securitics held by the Selected Fund may go wp or down, sometimes rapidly or
unpredictably, Sccurities may decline in value due to factors affecting securitics markets generally or
particular industries represented in the securitics markets. The value of a security may decling due to
general market conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or
perceived adverse ceonomic conditions, supply and demand for particular securitics or instruments, changes
in the general outlook for corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates of adverse investor
sentiment. They may also decline due to factors which affect a panicular industry or industries, such as
labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions within an industry, During a
general downtum in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in value simultaneously,
Equity securities gencrally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.

An incrcase in market prices of the mvestment in the Sclected Fund of 1% at January 31, 2024 and 2023,

would have increased the Met Assets by USD 412,229 (2023: USD 456,162), A decrease of 1% would, all
else being equal, have an equal but opposite effect.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND

Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended Janoary 31, 2024
{Stated in United States dollars)

9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continuwed)

9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
{A) Market Risk (continued)

(i) Marker Price Risk (comtinned)

The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in the market price risk of the Selected
Fund at January 31, 2024 as a percentage of net assets of the Series Trust.

Countries of investment hy the Series Trust Fair Value Yo of Net Assets
Investments in securities

Australia R0% 635 0.24%
Canada 948,951 0.25%
China (95.663) (0.03%)
Ewropean Union 435,292 0.12%
France 114,432,633 30.56%
Ciermany iy, 369 0.15%
Hong Kong (340,826) (0.09%)
Traly 038 381 0.26%
Japan 4 460,551 1.19%
Metherlands 610,021 0.16%
Singapore (2819) 0.00%%
South Africa (27.485) {0.01%)
South Korea (54,282) (0.01%%5)
Sweden 158,020 0,04%
Switzerland 463,977 0.12%
Taiwan (32.276) (0.01%%)
LUnited Kingdom 941,943 0.25%
Umited States 210069756 56.11%
Total Investments in securities 334 511 488 20.33%

The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in the market price nisk of the Sclected
Fund at January 31, 2023 as a percentage of net assets of the Series Trust,

Countries of investment by the Series Trust

Fair Value

%o of Net Asscis

Investmients in securities
Australia

Canada

China

European Union

France

Germany

Hong Kong

Italy

Japan

Metherlands

Singapore

South Africa

South Korea

Sweden

Switzerland

Taiwan

United Kingdom

LUnited States

Tuotal Investments in securities

266,520
Q00,471
{30.8ThH)
934,792
310,468,966
(1,05%.731)
(306,97T)
68,244
16,386
(18,543}
(16,921)
102,773
434,768
(97, 464)
126,369
#1,023
524,008
164,823,026

0.05%
0.17%
(0.01%)
0.18%
59.87%
(0.20%)
(0.06%)
0.01%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.02%
0.08%
(0.02%)
0.06%
0.02%
0.10%
31.78%

477.417.840

92.05%
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For the vear ended January 31, 2024
{Stated in United States dollars)

9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer’s credit rating or the market's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect the
value of the Series Trust’s investments in the Selected Fund. The degree of credit risk depends on both the
financial condition of the issuer and the terms of the obligation.

[Jue to its investment in the Sclected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit nsk associated with debs
instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund. All transactions in listed securities held by the Selected
Fund are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal,
as delivery of securitics sold is onlv made once the broker has received pavment. Payment is made on a
purchase onee the securitics have been received by the broker, The trade will fail if cither party fails to meet
their obligation.

The Investment Managzer monitors the Series Trust's credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of January 31, 2024 and
2023 is the carrying amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. Mo collaveral or other credit
enhancements are held by the Series Trust. None of these assets are impaired or past due.

The cleanng and depository operations for the Selected Fund’s secunity  transactions are mainly
concentrated with their custodian. The Serics Trust minimizes its exposure to credit risk by condueting
transactions with an established and reputable broker, which is Mitsubishi LIF) Investor Services Banking
(Luxembourg) 5.4 and as at January 31, 2024 and 2023, credit rating was A (2023: A) as published by
S&P. At January 31, 2024 and 2023, substantially all cash is placed at this broker.

The carrving amounts of financial asscts best represent the maximum credit nisk exposure at the reporting
date. This also relates to finaneial assets carnied at amortized cost, as they have a short-term to matunty,

As at January 31, 2024 and 2023, the Series Trust’s financial assets exposed to credit risk amounmted 1o the
following:

January 31, 2024 Janwary 31, 2023

Investments in Selected Fund 41,222,850 45,616,199
Cash and cash equivalents 1,776,261 2,070,563
Prepayvments and other assets 10,243 51,024
LiSD 43009354 USD 47,737,786
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For the vear ended January 31, 2024
{Stared in United States dallars)

9.

9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

(C) Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult o purchase or sell. The Series Trust's
investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to scll

the illiguid securities at an advantageous time or price,

The table below analyzes the Serics Trust’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the
remaning period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts

in the table are the comracal undiscounted cash flows.

3 months 3 months Total

As at January 31, 2024 or less to | vear
Administration fees payable 8,137 - 8137
Professional fees pavable 22,391 - 22,30
Distributor fees pavable 28,687 - 28687
Fee Agent fees payable 4,592 - 4,592
Agent Member Company fees pavable 383 - 363
Manager Suppont Service Provider fees payable 7653 - T.653
Investment Manager fees payable 5,734 - 5,734
Trustee fees pavable 15,000 - 15,000
Orther payables 79310 - 79,310
171,887 - 171,887
3 months 3 months Total

_As at January 31, 2023 or less to 1 year
Administration fees pavable 30,329 - 30,329
Distributor fees payable 25,505 - 25,505
Fee Agent fees payable 4,924 - 4924
Agent Member Company fees payable 410 - 410
Manager Support Service Provider fees pavable 5953 - 5,953
Investment Manager fees pavable 149 - 6,149
Redemption payable 14,159 - 14,159
Trustee fees pavable 5000 . 5000
Onher payables 77,688 - 77,688
170,117 - 170,017

The Monager monitors the Series Trust's liguidity position on an on-going basis, and does not invest in

illiquid assets.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continuwed)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
{C) Liguidity Risk (continued)

Due to its investment in the Sclected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liquidity nisk associated with
unitholder repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund's Prospectus. The Series Trust is
managed to include liquid investments sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial
repurchases of units in the Series Trust could require the Sclected Fund 1o liquidate its investments more
rapidly than otherwise desirable in order 1o raise cash for the repurchases. These factors could adversely
affect the valwe of the units repurchased and the valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the
liquidity of the Series Trust's remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold to meet the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applicd in respect to the Selected Fund for the vear ended January 31, 2024
and 2023,

(1) Hisk Managzement

The Series Trust’s Investment Manager's team 15 supported by certain risk management systems and
professionals. which provide regular reporting on the Selected Fund and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of units,

The amount of net assets attributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daly basis as the
Series Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases ot the discretion of the unitholder. The Series
Trust’s objective when managing capital is 1o safeguard the Series Trust’s ability o continue as a going
coneern m order o provide retums for the unitholder and benefis for other stakeholders and 10 mamtan a
stromg capital base to suppont the development of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust 's policy is to perform the following;

«  Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relatve w the liquid assets and adjust the
amount of distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

+  Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the cons titutional documents of the Series Trust.
The Manager momitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of units,
9.2 Additional Series Trust’s Risks
{A) Custody Risk

MNeither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust's investments in the
Selected Fund, The custodian or other banks or brokerage firms sclected to act as custodians may become
imsolvent, causing the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians,

(B} Risk of Indemnification
The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Investment Manager and other parties, and cach of their
respective agents, principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are enfitled o be ndemnified out of the

assets of the Series Trust under certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per
unit,
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continuwed)
9.2 Additional Series Trust’s Risks (continued)
{C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United
States, the European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearsnce procedures and trade regulations
also may invelve cenain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically
associated with the scttlement of United States investments. At times, settlements in certain foreign
countries have not kept pace with the number of secunitics transactions, These problems may make it
difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to carry out transactions for the account of the
Series Trust. If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of securities, it may miss
attractive investment opportumitics and certain of the Series Trust's assets may be uninvested with no retum
earned thereon for some period.

If the Selected Fund and uliimately. the Manager cannot settle or is delaved in settling a sale of securities,
the Sertes Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, if it has contracted
to sell the security to another party: the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.

(I3} Derivatives

The Series Trust’s assets are not used o directly invest in derivatives. The series trust may be exposed w
risks associated with investing in derivatives through its investment in the Sclected Fund. These risks
inglude;

= Credit Risk — the nisk that the coumterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a
derivative transaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series Trust.

+  Leverage Risk — the risk associated with centain tvpes of investments or trading strategics that
relatively small market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certain
investments or trading strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the
amount originally invested.

*  Liguidity Risk — the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that
the seller would like or at the price that the seller believes the secunity is currently worth.

As of January 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no Senes Trust denvative assets and derivative liabilities
subject to netting arrangements and similar arrangements.

(E

ot

Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterpartics, including banks and brokerage firm with which the Manager
or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in
material losses to the Series Trust, In addition, the Manager may pledee collateral for the account af the
Series Trust to the counterparties in order o secure certain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the
Manager during the year ended January 31, 2024 and 2023,

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial labilities i the Statement of Financial
Position,
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continuwed)
9.2 Additional Series Trust’s Risks (continued)
{F) Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any generated income. Distributions (if any) may be paid in whole
or in part out of investment principal attnbutable w the units or, altematively, the Generated Income may be
zero. A distribution can in effect result in a return of an investor™s initial capital or capital gains thereby
eroding that capital to the extent the distribution exceeds available income. In conseguence of this
possibility, mvestors secking capital preservation may not achigve this given probable detenoration in the
value of the Series Trust's investments caused by declining asset values and a return of capital to investors
by way of distribution. If the Scries Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase Price a unitholder receives back
in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the wnitholder s initial investment.

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distnbutions paid by the Selected Fund. Should the
Selected Fund fail to pay any distributions or pay less than anticipated, including due to a rise in the non-
treaty tax rate applicable 1o the Series Trust, then the Series Trust will gain correspondingly less than
investors may previously have expected. Furthermore, iff the interest rate at which the distributions received
accrue falls during the yearly period. this may also lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

The selected fund did not pay any distributions during the vear,
(G No Interest in the Selected Fund

The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund, An
investment in units does not give a unitholder a dircet interest in the Selected Fund.

(H) Early Termination of the Series Trust

Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Serics Trust is scheduled for January 31, 2025, the Final
Repurchase Dav will be brounght forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation

The Series Trust applies [FRS 13 Fair value measurement and utilizes the last traded market price for its
fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the assct or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis,
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continuwed)
9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not wraded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques, The Series Trust wses a varicty of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at cach period end date, Valuation techniques used for non-
standardized fnancial imstruments such as options, eurrency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives,
inclede the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation technigues
commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as linle as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

For mstruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use mternally developed models,
which are usually based on valuation methods and technigues generally recognized as standard within the
industry, Some of the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated
based on assumptions, The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot
be determined with certainty, and valuation techmigues employed may not fully refleet all factors relevant o
the positions the Series Trust holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for
additional factors including medel risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value hicrarchy has the following levels:

+  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2 inputs are mputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirery is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, For this purpose, the significance of an mput 1s assessed agamst the faur value measurement m its
entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular
input 1o the fair value measurement i its entirety requires judgment, considenng factors specific to the
asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administeator,
under advisemenmt of the Manager, The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers
abservable data 1 be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant
market.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continuwed)
9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

The following is a summary of the fair valuanons according to the inputs used as of January 31, 2024 and
2023 in valuing the Series Trust’s financial assets;

(Unadjusted)

Quated Prices in Significant

Active Markels her Significant
Financial Assets at Fair for ldentical hservable LUinohservable Fair Value at
Value Through Profit Investimeils Innpuits Inpiits January 31,
ar Laoss {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) 2024
Investment in the
Selected Fund
MAMN AHL Active
Balanced | (USD Class) 5 . 5 41,222,850 5 - 5 41.222.850
Financial asscts, at Tair
vale through profit ar
loss 5 - 5 41,222.850 5 - 5 41.222.850

(Unadjusted)

Quaoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Signilicant
Financial Assets at Fair for Identical hservable LUnohservable Fair Value at
Value Throwgh Profit Investments liwpaits Inpts January 31,
ar Laoss {Level 1} {Level 2) {Level 3) 2022
Investment in the
Selected Fund
MAMN AHL Active

_Balanced 1 (USD Class) 5 . 5 45,616,199 5 - 5 45.616,199

Financial assets, at fair
value through profit or
loss 5 - 5 45.606,199 5 - 5 45,616,199

[uring the vear ended January 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.

128/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2024
iStated in United States dollars)

9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continuwed)
9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

Fimancial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on
gquoted market prices, dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supported by obscrvable inputs are
classificd within Level 2, These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt scouritics. As Level 2
investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions,
valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiguidity and'or non-transferability, which are generally based on
available market information.

For purposes of calculating the MNAY of the Selected Fund, fixed income securities for which market quotes
are readily available are normally valued on the basis of quotes obtained from established market makers or
pricing services and are classified as Level 2 investments in the Anancial statements of the Selected Fund.
Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs which can generally be corroborated by market data
and are therefore classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. As of
Januwary 31, 2024 and 2023 all financial assets and liabilities were classified as Level 2 investments,

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) At Janwary 31, 2024 and 2023, cash and all other assets and liabilities (including investments in
Selected Fund, subscription receivable, prepaid trustee fees, prepayments and other assets and payables
for, investment manager fees, manager support service provider fee, fee agent fees, distribution fees,
transfer agent fecs, administeator fees, custody fees, professional fees and agent member company fees
and other and due to broker) are deemed short-term financial assets and liabilitics whose carmying
amounts approximate fair value because of their short-term nature,

9.4 Investments in unconsalidated structured entities

As of January 31, 2024 the Sclected Fund's net asset value was USD 374,411,914, As of January 31, 2024 the
Selected Fund held total imvestments of USD 335842364 comprising of fixed income secunities (Sovereign
Bonds and Term Deposits) of USD 316,222,633, Futures coniract assets of USD 18,842,206 and liabilities of
USD 553,351 and forward contract assets of USD 219,236,419 and liabilities of USD 217,905,543,

The valuation of investments in unconsolidated struetured entities represents the amount the Series Trust
would expect to receive if it were to liguidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlyving fund’s
liguidity or redemption restrictions and costs,

The rights antached 1o the Series Trust’s holding in the Selected Fund is similar 1o those of other investors.
Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in their offering documents. The
Senes Trust has the ability to hquidate or redeem its investments penodically i accordance with the
provisions of the provisions of the Selected Fund’s offering memorandum. Refer to Note | for information
regarding the investment objectives of the Selected Fund.

=

Subsequent events

Following a Special resolution dated February 1, 2024, the Manager changed its name and is now
incorporated under the name of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited.

On February 28, 2024, the Trustee resolved to change the name of the Trust from Credit Suisse Liniversal
Trust (Cayvman) I to UBS Universal Trost (Cayman) [11. The Master Trust Deed was revised through a
Deed of Amendment on March 1, 2024,

Trustee has evaluated the events and transactions that have occurred through May 29, 2024, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective February 1, 2024 through May 29, 2024, there were redemptions of USD 1,406,159,

Trustee noted no items requiring adjustment or additional disclosure in the financial statements.
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2023 12 31

99,447,298 15,587,369
14,281,881 2,238,542
338 53
264,911,027 41,522,154
37,928,230 5,944,871
44,085 6,910
147,939 23,188
416,760,798 65,323,087
55 9
17,570,253 2,753,961
4,657,930 730,084
227,459 35,652

583 91

770,264 120,731
23,226,544 3,640,529

393,534,254 61,682,559
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485,247,906
4,510,565

(113,673,025)

17,448,808

393,534,254
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76,057,757
706,986

(17,817,110)

2,734,926
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2023 12 31

21,530,483 3,374,688
1,992 312
21,532,475 3,375,000
3,219,736 504,661
1,292,096 202,523
81,314 12,745
19,951 3,127
10,372 1,626

26 4

2,070 324
120,885 18,948
4,746,450 743,959
662,783 103,885
4,083,667 640,074
17,448,808 2,734,926
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2023 12 31

17,448,808

(14,281,881)

2,734,926

(2,238,542)

(338) (53)
42,135,944 6,604,388
(56,513,754) (8,857,966)

(28,961) (4,539)
28,407 4,453
5,617,775 880,530
(77,376) (12,128)
583 91
114,707 17,979
(5,556,086) (870, 861)
4,510,565 706,986

(113,673,025)

(17,817,110)

(109,162,460)

(17,110,124)

(114,718,546)

(17,980, 985)

214,165,789 33,568,346
99,447,243 15,587,361
99,447,298 15,587,369

(55) ®
99,447,243 15,587,361
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215
126
153

143
135

30
239
184
200
190
185

19

120
47

23

51
182

164
180

80
412

108
150

Australian 10 Years Bond Futures March 2024

SP1 200 Index Futures March 2024

Australian 3 Years Bond Futures March 2024

Canadian 10 Years Bond Futures March 2024

S&P TSX 60 Index Futures March 2024

Stoxx Euro ESG Index Futures March 2024
Euro BTP Futures March 2024

Euro OAT Futures March 2024

Euro BOBL Futures March 2024

Euro BUND Future March 2024

Swiss Market Index Futures March 2024

Euro BUXL 30 Years Bond March 2024

HSCEI Index Futures January 2024

Hang Seng Index Futures January 2024

IFSC NIFTY 50 Index Futures January 2024

Japan OSE 10 Years Bond March 2024
TOPIX Index Futures March 2024

Nikkei 225 (SGX) Index Futures March 2024
MSCI Singapore Index Futures January 2024
FTSE Taiwan Index Futures January 2024

FTSE China A50 Index Futures January 2024

FTSE/JSE Top 40 Index Futures March 2024

Korea 10 Years Bond Futures March 2024
Korea 3 Years Bond Futures March 2024

KOSPI2 Index Futures March 2024
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491,948 0.12
300,712 0.08
106,997 0.03
899,657 0.23
553,337 0.14
751,838 0.19
1,305,175 0.33
5,855 0.00
971,871 0.25
704,125 0.18
329,031 0.08
721,944 0.18
9,356 0.00
195,280 0.05
2,937,462 0.74
140,084 0.03
147,524 0.04
287,608 0.07
10,390 0.00
561,439 0.14
179,173 0.05
740,612 0.19
217,386 0.05
140,942 0.04
70,495 0.02
119,267 0.03
548,090 0.14
76,605 0.02
83,182 0.02
38,877 0.01
734,121 0.19
856,180 0.22
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18 OMXS30 ESG Index Futures January 2024 10,180 0.00
656 OMXS30 Index Futures January 2024 330,318 0.09
340,498 0.09

172 Long Gilt Futures March 2024 1,442,423 0.37
311 FTSE 100 Index Futures March 2024 689,214 0.17
2,131,637 0.54

174 S&P500 E-mini Index Futures March 2024 1,342,040 0.34
312 United States 5 Years Treasury Note CBT Futures March 2024 787,891 0.20
54 Nasdaq 100 E-mini Index Futures March 2024 748,630 0.19
5 E-mini S&P 500 ESG Index Futures March 2024 33,065 0.01
104 United States 2 Years Treasury Note CBT Futures March 2024 216,023 0.06
324 United States 10 Years Treasury Note CBT Futures March 2024 1,143,641 0.29
222 United States Long Bond CBT Futures March 2024 2,038,313 0.52
273 United States Ultra Bond CBT Futures March 2024 3,162,719 0.80
9,472,322 2.41

19,606,236 4.98
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5,000,000 France Discount Treasury Bill 0% 17/04/2024 5,464,703 1.39
25,000,000 France Discount Treasury Bill 0% 20/03/2024 27,404,571 6.96
5,000,000 France Treasury Bill 0% 10/07/2024 5,422,699 1.38
40,000,000 France Treasury Bill 0% 12/06/2024 43,505,094 11.05
25,000,000 France Treasury Bill 0% 15/05/2024 27,255,444 6.93
45,000,000 French Discount Treasury Bill 0% 24/01/2024 49,608,589 12.61

158,661,100 40.32
1,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 02/05/2024 982,675 0.25
1,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 09/05/2024 981,767 0.25
20,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 11/01/2024 19,973,729 5.08
1,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 11/04/2024# 985,650 0.25
35,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 16/05/2024 34,330,901 8.72
50,000,000 United States Treasury Bill 0% 23/05/2024# 48,995,205 12.45

106,249,927 27.00

264,911,027 67.32
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2023 12 31
“
1,228 1,348 2024 1 31 6 11 0.00
1,278 1,612 2024 1 31 5 16 0.00
51,545,601,644 349,189,880 2024 1 31 9 18,321,967 4.65

18,321,994 4.65

302,839,257 76.95
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2023 12 31

146 CAC 40 10 Euro Index Futures January 2024 (14,935) (0.00)
32 DAX Index Future March 2024 (47,983) (0.01)
432 Euro Stoxx 50 Index March 2024 (175,098) (0.05)

(223,081) (0.06)
75 FTSE MIB Index Futures March 2024 (66,030) (0.02)
73 Amsterdam Index Futures January 2024 (39,193) (0.01)

(343,239) (0.09)
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2023 12 31
15 20 2024 1 31 1 - (0.00)
3,038,601 4,529,000 2024 1 11 1 (53,098) (0.01)
164,718,627 152,393,780 2024 1 11 1 (3,711,213) (0.94)
3,483,316 2,742,000 2024 1 11 1 (12,441) (0.00)
4,150,863 599,096,734 2024 1 11 2 (107,337) (0.03)
15,573,756 2,244,700,989 2024 1 31 7 (430,602) (0.11)
(4,314,691) (1.09)
(4,657,930) (1.18)
302,839,257 76.95
(4,657,930) (1.18)
95,352,927 24.23
393,534,254 100.00
a
b
#
28.06
a 4.70
b 4.40
# 11.99
* 23.51
27.34
100.00
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UCITS 8.2 B
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2024
43,010,166 6,741,413,419
200,766 31,468,063
42,809,400 6,709,945,356
407,789
104.98 16,455
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1103 227
852
10
10
15
21
50

33.2
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2024 735,000 11,520

10
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2024

1,773,353,161
10,263,464

14 87,270,003
64,719,256,094
1,709,225,544
19 151,670,151,029
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2022
2023 12 31
22
38 59 328

2024 31
156.74

2022 12 31
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2023 2022
USD usD
60,034 9,410 14,396 2,256
60,034 9,410 14,396 2,256
60,034 9,410 14,396 2,256
185,000 28,997 205,000 32,132
(25) ) 58 9
245,009 38,403 219,454 34,397
(115,081) (18,038) (112,703) (17,665)
129,928 20,365 106,751 16,732
129,928 20,365 106,751 16,732
129,928 20,365 106,751 16,732
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2023 12 31

2023 2022

usb usb
9 2,249,019 352,511 1,984,033 310,977
10 185,864 29,132 205,864 32,267
2,434,883 381,644 2,189,897 343,244
10 451,584 70,781 336,526 52,747
451,584 70,781 336,526 52,747
11 735,000 115,204 735,000 115,204
1,248,299 195,658 1,118,371 175,293
1,983,299 310,862 1,853,371 290,497
2,434,883 381,644 2,189,897 343,244

2024 14
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2023 12 31
usD usb usD
2023
11 735,000 115,204 1,118,371 175,293 1,853,371 290,497
129,928 20,365 129,928 20,365
12 31 735,000 115,204 1,248,299 195,658 1,983,299 310,862
2022
11 735,000 115,204 1,011,620 158,561 1,746,620 273,765
106,751 16,732 106,751 16,732

12 31 735,000 115,204 1,118,371 175,293 1,853,371 290,497
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2023 12 31
2023 2022

UsD usD
129,928 20,365 106,751 16,732
4 (60,034) (9,410) (14,396) (2,256)
69,894 10,955 92,355 14,476
20,000 3,135 4,999 784
20,000 3,135 4,999 784
115,058 18,034 112,595 17,648
115,058 18,034 112,595 17,648
4 60,034 9,410 14,396 2,256
264,986 41,534 224,345 35,164
264,986 41,534 224,345 35,164
9 1,984,033 310,977 1,759,688 275,813
2,249,019 352,511 1,984,033 310,977
9 2,249,019 352,511 1,984,033 310,977

2,249,019 352,511 1,984,033 310,977
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KY1-1104 309
c/o0 Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2023 12

22.48
37
5.1

2023 12
2024 31
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2023
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2023 2022
60,034 14,396
60,034 14,396
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2023 2022
185,000 205,000
185,000 205,000

2023 2022
(48) (50)
(6,390) (6,478)
(108, 643) (106,175)
(115,081) (112,703)

2039 10 10
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5,000 2022 5,000 2023 12 31

2023
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2023 2022
2,249,019 1,984,033
2,249,019 1,984,033

2023 2022
185,864 205,864
185,864 205,864

2023 2022
451,584 336,526
451,584 336,526

2023 2022

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

159/214



11

12

2023 12 31

2023 12 31

2022 12 31

2022 12 31

12
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12
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
13
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
451,584 451,584 336,526 336,526
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,186,584 1,186,584 1,071,526 1,071,526
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000

161/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

13
2023 2022
108,643 106,175
108,643 106,175
14
2023 12 31
15 2023 12 31
2023 12 31
16
2023 12
2024 31 2024
17

2024 14
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Uﬂil{a:aguﬂwﬁ:u_rm}twmd
Franc! Siatements Tor the year anded 51 December 2058

Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December 2023

UsD m'f 2023 2022

et came e DOCEA T IEEES
- fram financial instruments measwed at amorhised
cos! 60,034 14,395

'_I'ol.nl interest incomea 4 60,034 14,356

L e El%ﬁﬂﬁmmﬁ

T e
Total revenuas 245,009 219,454

‘General, administratve and other operaling expenses 6 (115,081) (112,708
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 129,928 106,751

Profit before tax 129,928 106,751

.................................................... R T

Incomea bax axpense T — -
Profit after tax 129,928 106,751

Tha accompanying notes form an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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1188 Maragenan! (Corman) Lindsd
Fruricn Slalsrrants for the posr anded 37 Cocambar 2073

Ratberar

- - mﬁ 2023 2022
BBBS e ememaeeeeeeeesessenmesenetesAeAemanemieneeini oo i
Cash and due from banks . 8 ..2240019 1984033
Cthar assats 10 186 B84 a6 HEY
Total assels 2,434,883 2,185,837
e e i
Tatal liabilities 451,584 336,526
Shareholders'equily e
Shereoptil. - s L2, .J86000 735,000
"Hetained cornings 1,242,299 1,118371
Total shareholders' equity 1,983,299 1,853,371
Total liabilities and shareholders' aquity 2,434,883 2,180,897
Approved and autharised for issue by the board of directors on 14 June 2024

)

il . }
'l‘l'-'-“'k“ Pﬂf&v“ﬂﬁ Director

)

X 1-.-“-‘-"”'

[

The accomparnying notes farm an integral part of these financial statements,
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UES Maragemand (Cayrran) Limited
Firancst! Stalameds fov e yoar anded 37 Deonmber 2008

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

Share capital Retained Total
usp &amings

Balance at 1 January | aes000 | i 18371 Y 86337

Profit for the year — 126 528 195,998
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,248,299 1,983,298

2022
Balance st 1janvary . 733000 1011620 1746620
Frofit for the year — 106,751 106,751

Balance at 31 December 135,000 1.118,3M 1,853,371

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemants,
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UVES amarpameant fmenan) L smded
Finsnowl Stmtemants for the yoar eaded 37 Dacambar 2T

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

] 2023 2092
usn ool
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit befere Lax for ihe peripd 109 808 106,751
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
_enerated from operating activities
Mon-cash items included in net profit before tax
and other adjustments:
Interest Income 4 {60,034) (14,396}
o e
changes in operating assets and liabilities 69,894 92,355
MNetdecrenzein operating sssels: | ooz enmre e e senans
Other assets 20,000 4,999
Met decrease in operating assets 20,000 4,999
Netincrease in operating liabifilles: | e ssnnaans s e ncnssnt anen
Other liabiliies 115,052 112,585
Netlncrease in operating abilitles: 115088 112,595
Interast income recaied 4 60,034 14,296
Net cash generated from operating activily 264,986 224,345
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 264,988 224,345
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year g 1,984,023 1,769,688
Cash and cazh equivalents at the and of yaar 2249019 1,984,033
Cash and due from banks 9 2249019 1,884,033
Cash and eash equivalents at tha end of year 2,249,019 1,984,033

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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LIS Mansgemant (Cayemen) Lindad
Iodes ke Fiesncial Statermenis for dho pow ordad 81 Deconbor 20058

Notes to the Financial Statements
1.  Principal activities

UBS Management (Cayman) Limited {the 'Cempany’) is incorperatad in the Cayman lslands with
lemited liability. The Cempany's principal actvities are the creation of trusts and the administration ard
management of assels in trusts. The Company's registered office is /o Maples Corporate Servicas
Limitad, P.O. Box 304, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman |slands.

Key developments during the year

On 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeeding by operation of
Swiss law to 2ll assets and llabifties of Credt Suisse Group AG, and became the direct or indirect
sharehclder of all of the former direct and [ndirect subsidiarias of Credit Svisse Group AG (the
Transaction).

Upan the completion of the Transaction, sach cutstanding, registered Credit Suisse share converted
te the right to receive, subject 1o the payment of cartain feas to the Crecit Suisse depository in the
case of Credit Suisse Amedcan depositon sharss (ADS), the merger considaration consisting of
1/22.48 UBS Group AG sharas. In aggregata, Credit Sulsse shareholders receaived 5.1% of the
outstanding UBS Group AZ shares on the acquisition date, with a purchase price of USD 3.7 billion

In Cecember 2023, the Board of Direclers of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Credit Suisse AG, ard both entifies enterad inlo a definitve merger agreement. The merger is
complated on 371 May 2024,

2. Material Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

Thasze firancial staterments have bean prepased in accordance with all applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards, which collective tarm indudes all applicable individual Intemations] Financial Regorting
Standards, Intermaticnal Accounting Standards [1A5s") and Inberpretations issued by Intemational
Accourting Standards Board (IASB™. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Company [s sel out below,

(b} Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of tha financial statameants is the historical cost basis.

The preparaticn of finencial sistaments in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of asssts, Babilities, income and expenses. The esfimates and associated
assumplion: are bagsed on historcal experience and various other faciors that are befiaved to be
reasonabls under the circumstancas, the rasults of which form the basis of making the judgemenis
about carmying values of assets and labBlies that are nok readlly apparent from other sources, Adual
results may differ frem these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions fo accounting
estimates are recognised in the peried in which the estimate is revised 1 the revision affects only that
pericd, or in the penod of the revision and future pericds if the reviston affects both cument and future
pericds.
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UES Mansgemas (Tromay) Lisked
Hotes lo Firanelsl Stfarmenls for ihe pear snded 31 Dacander 2053

2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)
(b} Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements (continued)
Standards effective in the current period

The group has applied the following new and amended standards for its annual reporing period
commencing 1 Jarueny 2023

. Cefinttian of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to A5 B
. Disclasure of Accounting Policizs ~ Amencments to [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendmants lisied abeve did net bava any impact en the amounts recognised in prior parods
and ara not expectsd o significantly affect the cument or future periods.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertble into known amounts of cash and which are subjoct to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having bean within three menths of maturity at acquisition.

(d} Foreign currency

The Cempany's functional and presentation cumency is United States Dollars ("USD". Fereign
currency transactions during the year are translated into USD at the forelgn exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Maonetary assets and Jabilties denominated in foreign currencies are translated
inte USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of he reporting peried. Exchange gains and
losses ara recognised in the profil or loss,

Man-maonetary assets and labilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forsign currency
are franslated into USD using the foreign exchange rates rullng at the transaction dates. Mon-
monaetary assats and fiabiltes denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at far value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined, Foreign
currgncy differences aiising on relranslation are recognised in profit or loss,

(e} Other assets

Other assets are infially recegnised at far value and thereafter stated ot amoriised cost bess
Expected Credt Loss {'ECL) {refer to Mote G(g)), except where the receivables are inferest-free
lzans made to related parties without any fiwed repayment terms or the eifect of discourting would ke
immaterial, In such cases, the recelvables are slaled at cost less impairment for bad and deubtful
dabts.

{f) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Pravisions are recegnised for labiltles of uncertain timing er amount when the Comparny has a leagal
or constructive chligation asising as a result of 2 past event, it is probable that 2n autflow of economic
banefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate cash be made. Where the time
valus of manaey Is malarial, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected 1o
seifle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an cutflow of ecancmic banefits will be required, or the amount canno

be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liabikty, unless the probability of
cutflow of economic benefils is remote. Possible cbligations, whose existence will only be confimed
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mwmw:ﬂhﬁw
Nolws fo Fianchl Sixlsments for the yeer ended 37 Dacember 2025

2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)
{f) Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

by the occurrence or non-occurmence of one or more fulure events are also disclozed as contingent
liabilities unlass the probakilfty of cutiow of economic bansfits is remaobe.

{g) Impairment

The carmying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of sach reporting period to
determine whether thers is any objective evidence of impaiment. f any such objective evidence
enists, the assel's recoverable amount is estmated at fhe end of each reporting pericd. An
impaimnent loss is recognised whenever the camying amount of an asset excesds its recoverable
amount. Impairmert kosses are recegnised in the preft or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impaimiant requirements apply primarily te financial assets measured at armertised
cost. The impairment reguirernents are tased on 2 forward-looking expected credit loss model by
incorporating reascnable and supporlable forecasts of futuwe economic conditions avadable at the
raparting date. This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economiz factors affect
ECLs, which is determined on 2 probability-weighted basis.

{h) Revenue recognition

Proviced that it s probable that the eccnomizc benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
cosls, if appficable, can be measured reliably, service fee incoma is recognised in profit or less when
thae investment managemant sarvica is providad,

(i) Expensas
All expenses are recognisad in prefit and less en an accrus! basis.
(i) Related parties

Faor the purpcses of these financial statements, a party iz considered 12 be related to the Compary if:
() A person, or & close member of that person's family, is related o the Company if that person:
1 has control or Jeint contral avar the Company; :
(i}  has significant influense over the Company, or
(i) is a member of the kay management perscnnél of the Company or the Compzany's
parent.

(b}  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

{3  The entity and the Company sre members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidlary and felow subsidiary is related te tha ethars),

() One entity is an associate or jeint venture of the other entity (or 2n associate o joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is 2 member).

(i) Both entitias are jeint veniures of the same third party,

(¥} One entity s a joint venture of a third party and the other enfily is an associate of the
third party.

() The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the banefit of employess of ether the
Compariy or an entity related to the Cempany.

{v) The entity is contrelled or jointly controlled by a persen identified in (2).

(vid A person identfied in (2} has significant influence over the entity or is & member of the
wey management perscnrel of the entity (or of a parant of fhe entity).
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LIBS Iane gerent (o) Limslad
Iokers o Finenciad Stiternents for ihe s ended 31 December 2053

2. Material Accounting Policies {continued)
(i} Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a perscn are those family membars who may be expected to
influence, ar be influsnced by, that persen in their deslings with the antity.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASE has issued a numbar of amendmants to IFRS Accounting Standards that are first effective
for the cumant sccounting pered of the Company. The adaption of these amendments had no
rraterial impast to the Coempany’s fnandal position, result of aperalions or cash lows.

Tha Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet sffective for the
current accounting pericd (Note 15).

4, Total Interest Income

UsD 2023 2022
Total interest i income

Iﬁtéié's't'l:ﬁmr*.e on cash and due from banks 69034 .:1'555':
otal interest income 80,084 14,398

All the above inlerast income on financial instrumants measured at amortised cost.
6. Service Fee Income

The principal actvities of the Company are tha creation of trusts and the edminisbafion and
management of assels in trusts.

Revenus represents invesiment management fee income camed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

uspoD 2023 2022
Samice fea incoma 135 OEI'.'I m:ﬁi,f_‘ﬂ
Total service fee income 185,000 205,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

UsD 2023 2022
[General administrative and other operating expenses
Audor remuneration T RRG0)

Ulracb:urs remunemtlm (108 843) {1{16 .Tﬁ}
Total general administrative and other operating expenses {115,081) {112,708)

All of the above spanditures are papshle lo the Company's immedate holding company and the
immediate helding company setfles such sxpendhiures on behalf of the Company
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7. Taxation

Thara are no {axes on income of gains in the Cayman islands and the Company has receved an
undertzking from the Geverncr in Council of the Cayman lslands sxempting it from all local income,
profits and capital taves until 10 Octobar 2038, Aceardingly, no provision for income taxes Is includad
in these financial statements.

B. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sponsored unconsolidated siuclurad anfiliss

The Company considers fself the sponsor of a structured entity when aither its name appears in the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there (s a general expectation from the
market that the Company is associated with the structured enity or the Company was involved in the
dasign or set up of the struchured entity and has a form of iwolvement with the struciures entity,

Tha below unconsolidated structursd anlitias are- sponscrad by the Company where a fised annual
management foe of USD 5000 (2022 USD 5,000) is recalved but no Interest 5 hald by the
Company as at 31 Decamber 2023
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

Global Se]ect Garr}r Sh?atﬁw Fund

LTI

“Austraian Fiigh Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional |mesm:§ Oy}

S REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Orly)
Japan Equity I_:"_am!um Stata&g Fund
Frinc:

“Blobal REFT Triple Fremium Fund (For Ouaffied Institutonal Investors O

Us H|5|r- Div Eqmt:.r Prummm Fund{ nr ﬂuairmd Innta.rtnnal Im’aﬂm Dniﬂ

US Small Cap Eg th}l ‘Premum Fund I{Fcrouallﬁad institutional I"westu g Onk}

US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualifisd Insttutional Investors Only)

“Jasan Eg_u.ty F"amuum Fund {Fur Clualifed 'nshb.zt::-'r;al 'ﬁ:-'.-.'-stm O:ﬂr]
NBJM'_'{M!# Ug R'IT Incumﬂ Fund {Fu' Cuaified Insttutl?nal investors Cl'n[}l’l

Ela.rws. LIK Hﬂh Dmdend EELJE!' Fund I:Fnr.ﬂualrf'ad Init'h.rt cnal Investors Dn_llr]

‘Daiwa. W|L "-.-’antu-e-s |I] 1 'P' Fund

E’azi] Eq_Jd}r_.-:_a"_l_a Fund [Fm Guakﬁed -nsﬁtl..hmal Iwest-::rs Dn'}a}
‘Daiwa Drazilizn Real Bond Fund {Fu-r Tiaalified institutional investors On ]1
_‘\{1_.-:9:&3 JEFI_E!‘I _Eq.dl‘}f Actnre_l_:und {Fnr {'.‘.JaJrhed Inslrtul:unal Imrestor" Gnlﬁ

AMP Australia REIT ‘=und'(F+:r Duajlfaed instituticnal Investors D"l!',r'}

"J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onb)

ipal / CS Canadian Equity In Inmmu Fund {Fnr Uya.lriged Inshmna.t Ir"uesturs Clnlf,l

‘Daiwa Emerging Local Market Bond Fund (For Qualfied institutional Investors Gniyl

DA e

A AL

AR

‘Daiwa American H|,gh ‘Dividend Equ[*}‘ ‘Cliattre Income Fund (Fur Cualffiad Institutional investers

Only)

Daivwa .l\i'.mlﬂﬂcﬂ."l er' Gl.m‘hﬂ In::oma Fund {For ﬁualiﬁad IﬂSh‘h‘tlﬂnﬂ| I"westms Dnh‘.r}

Shnsal Word” me Stable qu:la {Faf Qualified 1nslii.ulacna Imrea'.urs Or 1I,r,.

s RHT Tr!PIa I’:nglna Pius Fund {Fur Gua*’lflau Irvstduhnnnl [mgjstms Dnl:,'}

US Mun dpal Bond Fund

-:FBI::nM3maCA BmdFi.j.m...............................................

G!uba_l th o’ 'ﬂdand Equrl_';f Fremm_r!n F_L_Jnd L'Fur Ousifrad institutionsl Inv?_stc-_rs C!n!'}

“Maistar's Colsction
EfS‘M_D‘beaI .ﬂ.dvaqlaga

_PIMCO Short Term lﬂtﬂmaaﬂmqyrl..nd
P l'u'ICG Shurt Tmm Stratagy

Dﬂhra J- REIT E:c'md C&I Fund G F-:;: Duaﬁn‘:ea mal;tutm:ml |iI'-r‘E5‘.th Gnl].r]
Treign Dascarkiatod bow 4111 Svaait L averagn Sabagy Find

5Bl Pictet Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund

AR

Pramrum Carry Strategy Fund
* The funds were terminated during 2023.

smrmEEEEaE

AR EANEE R

SEPEAE

s A

Tha Compeny has nol provided financial or other support to unconsolidated structured enfities that it

was not contractually required to provide,

The Company does not currently have the infention to provide financial or other suppot to

unconsolidated struchured entities that it is not confractually required to provide.,
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Cash and cash egiivalents comprise:
UsD 2023 2022
Cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks 2,245,018 1,884,033
Total cash and due from banks 2,249,019 1,984,033
10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities
uso 2023 2022
Cther assets
Interast and fees recelvabla 186 864 205 864
Total other assets 185,864 205,864
uso 2023 2022
Other liabilities
Interest and fees payable 451,584 336 b6
Total other liabilities 451,584 336,526
11. Share Capital
{m) Authorised and issued share capital
2023 2022

Mo. of UsD MNo. of ush

shares sharas
Autharised:
Crdinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000000 1,000,000 1,000,000  1,000000
Issued and fully paid up: . _ _ _
Crdinary shares 735,000 735,000 735,000 T35 000

The hoddars of ardinary shares are enliled o receve dividends as dedlared from tme to ime and are
antitled to cna vote per share at general mestings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company's rasidual assets
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11.  Share Capital {continued)
(b} Capital management

The Company's primary objectves when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s akility to
continue as a going concem so thet it can contnue to provide returns to sharsholders, by priong
services commensurately with the level of rsk and by securing access to finance &t a reasonable
cost. Az the Company is part ef a larger greup, the Company's sourcas of additional capital and
policies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital management
chjectives. The Company defines *capital® as including all companents of equity.

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewsd and managed with due regard to the capital
menagement praclices of the greup to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made lo the
eapital strueture i light of changes in ecoromic conditions affecting the Campany or the group, o
the axtent that these do not condiict with the directors' fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally imposed capital requirements in the current period,
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, Buidity, nterest rate and foreign currency risks anises in the normal course of the
Company's busness. These risks ara managed by the Company's fnanclal management palicias and
practices descrbed below,

(&) Credit risk

The Carmpary's credit risk s primarily atirbulabla to amounts dus from group companies and cash at
bank. Cradit risk s defined as risk that one party te a fnandal instrument will cause a financial loss to
another party by failing to discharge an obligaticn. Management regulary montors its risk exposure to
ensure that #s credit risk Is kept to & minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit rsk is
represented by the carmying amount of sach financial asset in the statement of financgal pesition after
éeducting any impairmant allowance.

{b) Liguidity risk

The Company's palicy is to regulaty menitor its Buidiby requirements to satisfy its contracteal and
reascnably foresseable obligations as they fall dus.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the Company's financial liabilties, which incledes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand of undated and are expected to be seitled between three lo twelve
marths,

{c} Interest rate risk

The Company Is exposed 10 interest rate risk only to the extent that it eams bank interest cn cash

and depesits. At 31 December 2023 and 2022, a change in interest rates would have no dirsct
material effect on the carrying value of the recognised assets or [iabiities of the Cempany.

16
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12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values {continued)
(d) Forelgn currency risk
The Company is expased to foreign cumrency risk primarly through certain transactions which give rise
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (HKD). As the HKD Is pegged to the USD,
the Compary conslders that tha risk of mevemants in axchange rates betwsen USD and HKD to be
Insignificant.

{e) Fair values

The camying ameounts of the Company's financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
nok materially diffarant from their fair value as at 31 December 2023 and 20232,

13. Material Related Parly Transactions

in addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsawhers In the financal stetamants, tha
Company entered into the following material related party transactions.

(a) Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2003 31 December 2022
Parent Fellow Tatal Parant Fallow Tedal
Group Group
UsD Companies Companes
Assets
Othar assets - 185,684 185,664 205,054 205,634
Total assats - 185,864 185,889 - 205,864 205,864
Liabilides and
Equiby
oot IO, 1. T L T W
Stare capital 735,020 - T35,000 735,000 25,
Total liabilities and
sharaholders’
equity 1,186,584 — 1,186,584 1,011,526 — 1,071,628
16
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13.  Material Related Parly Transactions (continued)

{b} Related party revenues and expenses

31 Dasembear 2023 31 Decembar 2022
Parant Fellow Tatal Parant Fellow Total
Group Group
UsD Companias Companies
Ravenues
AR T PR IR o5y SIS - L SR PO o ORI Lt
Total revenues - 185,000 185,000 — 205,000 206,000

() Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key management personnel (I.ISI-J} 2023 2022
Director's Fee 108,643 106,175
Total Remuneration of key management personnal 108,643 106,175

14. Parent and Ulimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2023, the immedlate parent of he Company s Cradit Sulsse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which 13 Incorporated in Hong Kong and tha ultimate controling party of the Company is UBS Group
AG, which is incorporated In Swittedand, UBS Greup AG produces financhal statements available for
public use.

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023

Certain rew accounting standards, amendments fo acecunting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatery for 31 Cecember 2023 reporting periads and have not been
early adopled by the Company. Thesa standards, amandments or interpratations are not expectad to
have a material impact on the entity in the curant or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

16. Subsequent Events

In Cecember 2023, the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Credit Suisse AG, and both endities entered into a definitve merger agreement. The merger is
completad on 31 May 2024,

Effective 1 March 2024, the name of Credit Suisse Management {Cayman) Limited has been
changed ta UBS Management (Cayman} Limited

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financal slatements were approved for Beua by the board of directors of the Compary on 14
June 2024,
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2024 100 5,674
Intertrust N.V.
MUFG Fund Services (Cayman)
Limited
2024
784
UBS
2024 347
JSDA
JSDA
UBS

UBS AG, London Branch

2024 386 605 164
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1978 28
1997 12
1998 29
1862 1872
CHE-101.329.561
Aktiengesel Ischaft
NYSE
NYSE
UBS UBS 100
UBS
1998
BR004507
EC2M  2QS
UBS
Daiwa Asset Management (Europe)
Ltd
2024 500,000 9,981
1987
2024 31

199.61
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KPMG LLP

P.O. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman lIslands

Tel +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345949 7164
Web www.kpmg.com/ky

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage
Strategy Fund (the “Series Trust”), a series trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Ill (formerly Credit Suisse
Universal Trust (Cayman) lll) (the “Trust”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at January
31, 2024, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable units and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at January 31, 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IFRS Accounting Standards”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trust's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

May 29, 2024
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Independent Auditor®s Report

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Credit Suisse
Management (Cayman) Limited) (the"Company”), which are set out on pages 4 to 17, comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;
the statement of income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor"s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

212/214



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor®"s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 June 2024
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